25. THE MILL was built
and worked as a flour mill by
John Dunn.Whenthis
operation ceased the building
was purchased by Henry
; Waters who had a bakery,
§ grocery store and chaff mill.
t later became a residence.
M After years of neglect it was
= given a new lease of life.

. = Motel units were built in the
rear yard and became the Mill
Motel. Walls of the old stables remain.

26. ES&A BANK built in 1881 to take the place of a
weatherboard building in use since 1 April 1878. When the
bank closed in 1892 the Bank of Adelaide opened a branch and
rented the premises until 1904 when the business moved to
Hammond. It has since been a private residence.

27. This building began life as the three storcy QUORN
FLOUR MILL erected by Cowan & Co. Opened on 14 Dec
1878, the Mill had five pairs of stones and modern equipment.
After the Mill closed the building was used as a Butter Factory.
Following WWII it was converted to a single storey dwelling.

28. LIONS CLUB building was the Power House. It
contained the generator which provided Quorn with electricity
prior to ETSA power being available.

29. NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK—formerly the
National Bank of A/Asia Branch No 7, opened on 26 August
1878. When the bank closed the building was bought by G &
V Francis who live on the premises and operate the
JUNCTION ART GALLERY which was formerly located
at Yarrah Vale.

30. MASONIC LODGE No 59: This building was home of
Quorn High School until it became too small to accommodate
the growing number of students. When the new school was
erected the building was offered for sale and the Quorn
Masonic Lodge (est. 1910) purchased if for the sum of £395
($790). Craft, Chapter and Mark Lodges meet here.

31. TRANSCONTINENTAL HOTEL was erected in 1878
by Mr Greenslade. It was the first two storey hotel in (%uprn
and was said to_have the largest and best ventilated billiard
room in the north. The balcony along the Sixth Street side of
the building was added in 1920.

32 AUSTRAL INN HOTEL: Originally of one storey, this
hotel was called THE PINKERTON when it was erected in
1878 for Mr Armstrong. The walls are of pecked sandstone.In
1922 a second storey was added and the name changed to The
Austral. In 1972 motel units were built in the rear yard once
occupied by shops and stables.

33. SHOPS AND BRUSE’S HALL: The building was of one
storey, and occupied by shops, when purchased by Mr Bruse
owneér of The Criterion Hotel next door. He built a billiard
room and residence above. In recent years it has been
remodelled with the ground floor being opened up to form one
shop. For many years it was occupied by Quornucopia, now a
second-hand bookshop.
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34. THE CRITERION HOTEL was also owned by Mr Bruse.
Originally it had a balcony at the front, and a walkway was built to
Bruse's Hall balcony to provide access to the billiard room. The
two premises have been owned and operated separately for many
years. The stables at the rear have been converted into motel
accommodation.

35. THE COURT HOUSE building was erected in 1883 at a
cost of £587-6-9 ($1175?. From 1879-1883 Court was held in a
temporary building. .Following its closure it was leased to the
uorn Local History Group as a repository for their collection.
imilar stone was used in the construction of the Court House,
Town Hall, Post Office and Police Station.

36. THE TOWN HALL was opened by Mrs R W Foster in 1891.
It was a tremendous undertak11(11g to build such a large hall as the
town’s revenue barely exceeded expenditure. Internal remodelling
was carried out prior to the town’s centenary in 1978, when the
stage was removed to enlarge the hall space.The street side
extension is a bar (formerly Ladies Rest Room.) The rear buildin
houses Council Archives (formerly Library Reading Room) an

upper Room
formerly offices of
the Corporation of
Quorn.)

37. THE FLINDERS RANGES COUNCIL (Est. 1997) office and
Council Chamber. This office was erected for the Corporation of
Quorn in 1956. After amalgamation in 1969, it became the home
of the newly formed District Council of Kanyaka-Quorn. In 1988
the office was remodelled and the Council Chamber added. Further
alterations were made after the formation of The Flinders Ranges
Council on 1st January 1997.

38. ST MATHEWS PRELOVED BOUTIQUE: The building was
purchased by the District Council of Kanyaka—Quorn in 1992" who
upgraded it to its present condition. ow 0§)en mornings_daily
selling second-hand clothing . Originally used as a shop, it was
home of the Quorn Branch of the RSL after WW 1II.

39. IGA Supermarket: The present building was erected to replace
an historic building destroyed by fire in 1987. The original building
was once occupied by Matthews Store and later by Prests Ltd.
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Walk

The town of Quorn is situated 293m above sea level, the highest
point is Mount Brown 965m, about 14.5km to the south. éuorn
owes its existence to the railway. On Friday 18th Jan 1878, the
Governor Sir William Jervois, turned the first sod of the Great
Northern Railway and the town of Quorn was proclaimed on
16th May. Farming began in the district in 1875 and continues
today. Wheat and sheep (meat and wool) are the main products.
Alternative agriculture is being established on small properties.
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1. THE RAILWAY STATION: The present station building
was erected by F Fricker of (%ueenstown for £2,862 ($5,724).
Work commenced on 29 July 1914 and the building was
occupied in late 1915. The white sandstone of the walls was
from AC Williams’ quarry and the bricks were made at
Harradine's Clay Pit and Brick Kiln, In 1956 Quorn was closed
as a railway de({)otl. In the Seventies a group of enthusiastic
Bc;ople had the desire to preserve and operate the line through

ichi Richi Pass. The Pichi Richi Railway Preservation Society
was born on 22 July 1973. The Governor of South Australia, Sir
Mark Oliphant, officially re-opened the line on 20 July 1974.
Trains run between Pt Augusta and Quorn on Weekends in
season, between (%uom and Woolshed Flat during school
holidays, public holidays and alternate weekends . There are
also special event trains during the year (see Timetable
Schedule). A souvenir shop is located in the station building.
THE FLINDERS RANGES VISITOR INFORMATION
CENTRE is now
located at  the
Railway Station,
within = the former
vestibule and shop
areas.

Trackside view




2. POST OFFICE opened in August 1878. By June 1882 mails
between Adelaide, Quorn and Port Augusta were exchanged in one
day. In 1923 the Post Office was remodelled internally to make one
large room and the number of letter boxes were doubled to 120. It
became a Licensed Post Office on 14 April 1993. The attached
TELEGRAPH OFFICE opened in October 1880. (%]uorn had a
manual exchange until 1983 when it was converted to the automatic
telephone system.
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3. POLICE STATION: A policeman was stationed in the town
in 1879. He was housed in temporary accommodation until the

olice station was completed bg James Gordon, a contractor of
%uorn, in 1881 for a cost of £899 ($1800.)

4. QUORN HOTEL formally (GRAND JUNCTION HOTEL):
This two storey hotel with balcony is built of local stone and in the
old days featured a large card room adjoining the bar and a well
fitted-up billiard room.

5. THE FLINDERS RANGES COUNCIL Works Depot: The
corner building was a store owned bé/ Cottrell & Fyffe until 1880
when the shop and land were sold and a foundry and machine sho;
built. Implements and vehicles of many types were produced. In
1919 Thomas Carman Snr built the first garage in Quorn. In 1928
the garage became a separate business and the District Council of
Kanyaka purchased the remainder of the property for use as a
depot. Council purchased the former garage in March 1999.

6. This dwelling was built for Thomas Carman. It later became the
office of the DISTRICT COUNCIL OF KANYAKA. On 1 April
1969 the District Council amalgamated with the Corporation of
Quorn to form the District Council of Kanyaka-Quorn and moved
to offices in Seventh Street. It was sold and reverted once more to a
private dwelling.

7. This shop has been used as a dental and medical surgery.

8. The CHEMIST SHOP with residence was originally owned by H
Matthews. The first chemist was Mr Edward Gilbert from 1879-
1904. Various chemists have occulgied the premises, but it is now
operated as a chemist agency by CROSSROAD PHARMACIES .

9. Mr HF Adams began a General Store on 4 July 1911 called H F
ADAMS' STORES. Mr LB Adams succeeded his father and
ran the business until his retirement in 1952, when it closed. Until
that time there were three general stores in the town. There have
been various owners and occupiers over the years.

10. CRAFT SHOP (Locally produced crafts): Former home of
?uom Mercury newspaper _established bly' RM Osborne in May
895. Other owners were WH Bennett, F Pitman and CJ Stephens
who sold the business and building in 1945. From 1945 until the
last issue on 11 October 1956 QU 0 MB r ¢ wak published in
Port Augusta. AR Burden purchased the property and ran a ver
successful electrical business until his retirement. Block wit
building was purchased by Council in 1999 and the shop leased.

11. R W FOSTER: This family business was begun by Thomas
Lees at Saltia in the 1850's. It moved to Quorn in 1878 and
remained in the same family until its closure on July 30, 2004.

The premise is now EMILY’S BISTRO.

12. OUTBACK COLOURS-Art Gallery: Former Salvation
Army Hall built in 1908. The Corps opened in January 1884 and
closed in 1994. The Gallery features paintings by local artists.

13. The next four buildings have seen many tenants over the years.
The first two are occupie 13? l?UORN CAFE , next door is THE
WASH HOUSE then LK AIR D_ESIGNEkS and a 1p;rlvat_ely
owned shop formerly Quornella Boutique. One painted hoarding
lists films made in the district.

14. SAVINGS BANK OF SA building. This two storey (Froperty
with cellar was built by a Government contractor as a saddlery in
the early 1890's. It was later converted into a shop and private
residence by Mr Rock. The Bank
Burphased the building in 1909.
ittings and furniture in the
Banking Chamber were panelled
with polished cedar and the
counter was edged in brass. An
iron footrail was mounted on the
customer side of the counter. Gas
was used to light the premises.
Some time affer the bank closed it
was offered for sale and is now
privately owned. A bank agencX
operates from Quorn IG
supermarket.

15. CARINA TURNER STUDIO
& GALLERY premises were &
first owned and operated as a -~ oo
carpentry  and ironmongery

business by Robert Thompson in about 1883. In 1938 the
hardware section of the business was sold to CJ Easther and the
ca.r{)entry and undertaking business was taken over by Charles
Hill. In 1947 RH Donaldson purchased the hardware business,
which he operated until 1966. It has been used by various
businesses since that time.

16. The corner shop now occupied by THE QUANDONG CAFE,
is reputed to be the oldest stone building in Quorn and was
originally owned by Lynch and Fitzgerald. During WWII it was
used by the CWA for serving afternoon teas. Currently a café
where quandong products are available for sale.

17. CHURCH ON THE CORNER: This historic building was
erected by Mr Canny early in 1879 for use as a bakery and
confectionery shop upon land purchased the previous iear for £168
$336). It was used as a bakery until 1957, the last baker being Mr

ell. ~Flinders Museum opened here on 1 April 1972. It is now
privately owned and currently used as a church.

18. BUTCHER SHOP: This shop has had several owners and was
used as a butcher shop forthe flmT he Shiral ee.

19. Of the row of shops which extended from the Newsagency to the
Hotel only two remain. These are occupied by QUORN
PHARMACY.

20. The two storey building
of residence and 'shop was
Bewert's. Bakery until the
late Fifties. The adjoinin
sho houses QUO ‘
NEWSAGENCY = AND
GIFTS. First owner of the
Newsagency = was  Miss
Lewis. Walk in and have a
look at the wall mural.

21. OLD QUORN BAKEHOUSE: The exterior stonework has
been restored and a slate interior floor laid. Formerly Bewert’s
bakehouse, it was given the facade of an hotel for the film T h e
S hi r aik neveused as a quilting shop.

22 GARAGE—now QUORN AUTO PORT: Mr B J (Billie)
Hughes began the THE T GARAGE, in June 1924. He became
a dealer for Chevrolet, Pontiac, Oakland and Buick cars and GMC
trucks. He also conducted all mechanical repairs and auto electrical
service in addition to selling petrol, oils, tyres, batteries, springs and
accessories. When his sons joined the business the name was
changed to B J HUGHES & SONS. In 1948 the company became
one of the original General Motors Holdens dealers n South
Australia. It has had several owners since Hughes sold out.

23 In 1923 ‘Hartley Lodge’ private hospital was started in the
corner building by Mrs A Brewster. In 1939 the business and
premises were handed over to a community Board of Mana%ement
and continued to operate until the new hospital opened in 1950.

In 1962 Flinders House Home for the Aged was established by the
CWA and opened by Sir Thomas Playford on 30 March. Flinders
House moved to new premises in November 1995 and is now a
private residence.

24. QUORN AREA SCHOOL has been established on grounds
formerly occupied by QUORN HIGH SCHOOL. In 1968 the High
and Primary Schools were joined to become Quorn Area School and
new buildings were erected within the five acres of school grounds.
Following a fire which severely damaged the library/administration
building in 1987, the stone building §3u11t originally for the High
School), was remodelled to provide offices, staff facilities formally
School-Community Library. A new School-Community Library
is now located on West Terrace.



